| 8
N CITY OE

YORK

COUNCIL

» o

Ve

Notice of a public meeting of
Planning Committee

To: Councillors Fisher (Chair), Pavlovic (Vice-Chair), Ayre,
Barker, D'Agorne, Daubeney, Doughty, Douglas, Fenton,
Hollyer, Lomas, Looker, Melly, Waudby and Warters

Date: Thursday, 5 August 2021

Time: 4.30 pm

Venue: Dante room, York Racecourse
AGENDA

1. Declarations of Interest

At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare:
e any personal interests not included on the Register of Interests
e any prejudicial interests or
e any disclosable pecuniary interests

which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.

2. Minutes (Pages 3-10)

To approve and sign the minutes of the last meeting of the Planning
Committee held on 17 June 2021.

3. Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have registered to
speak can do so. Members of the public may speak on agenda items or on
matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to 2
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at remote meetings. The deadline
for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Tuesday 3 August 2021.

www.york.gov.uk



To register to speak please visit www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
to fill in an online registration form. If you have any questions about the
registration form or the meeting, please contact Democratic Services.
Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will be
webcast, including any registered public speakers who have given their
permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on demand at
www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

During coronavirus, we've made some changes to how we're running
council meetings. See our coronavirus updates
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemaocracy) for more information on meetings
and decisions.

4. Plans List
This item invites Members to determine the following planning application:

a) Frederick House, Fulford Road, York YO10 4EG [21/00116/FUL]
(Pages 11 - 60)

Variation of condition 2 of permitted application 19/00603/FULM seeking
amendments to external appearance, landscaping, internal arrangements,
substation, refuse and cycle stores [Fishergate Ward]

5. Urgent Business

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the Local
Government Act 1972.

Contact details

Democratic Services

Email: democratic.services@york.gov.uk
Tel: 01904 551088



http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy
mailto:democratic.services@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please
contact the Democratic Services Officer responsible for
servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EPEAEMNESRHEEREIESS (cantonese)
g2 ©T AT e o (@O AN | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Palish)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
G e U G < T A (Ura)
@ (01904) 551550




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Annex

Coronavirus protocols for attending Committee Meetings at York Racecourse

If you are attending a Council Committee Meeting at York Racecourse, you
must observe the following protocol, which adheres to any risk assessment
conducted by the external venue.

Windows and doors must remain open within the meeting room to maintain
good ventilation.

Furniture must not be moved from the designated safe layout.

If you're displaying possible coronavirus symptoms (or anyone in your household is
displaying symptoms), you must follow government self-isolation guidance and must
NOT attend the meeting.

Testing

The Council encourages regular testing of all Officers and Members and also any
members of the public in attendance at the Meeting. Any members of the public
attending the Meeting are advised to take a test within 24 hours of attending a
meeting, the result of the test should be negative, in order to attend. Test kits can
be obtained by clicking on either link: Find where to get rapid lateral flow tests -
NHS (test-and-trace.nhs.uk), or, Order coronavirus (COVID-19) rapid lateral flow
tests - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk). Alternatively, if you call 119 between the hours of
7am and 11pm, you can order a testing kit over the telephone.

Guidelines for attending Committee Meetings
You must:

¢ Not arrive more than 30 minutes before the Meeting is due to start.

e Wear a face covering whilst in indoor communal areas, face coverings do not
need to be worn in the Meeting room, or when seated during the meeting,
unless you wish to wear a face covering.

e Use the hand sanitiser which will be situated on entry and exit to the venue
and in different areas within the Meeting room.

¢ Adhere to social distancing where possible when using staircases and

walkways, giving way on the staircase landings.

e |f you do use a lift to access upper floors, please ensure that you maintain
social distancing, or travel in the lift alone.

e You must sit at the dedicated spaces (you will be provided with your own table
which may have a screen on it). If screens are in place do not move them or

lean around them.
Page 1 0of 2


https://maps.test-and-trace.nhs.uk/
https://maps.test-and-trace.nhs.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests
https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests

Page 2

e Bring your own drink if required.

e Maintain social distancing of 2 metres within toilet areas and remain vigilant for
other occupants.

¢ Only use the designated toilets for the Meeting room.

Please note: Anyone intentionally, or repeatedly breaching any of the social
distancing measures, or hygiene instructions, may be asked to leave the Meeting.

Developing symptoms whilst in external venues
If you develop coronavirus symptoms during Full Council, you should:

¢ make your way home immediately.
e avoid the use of public transport where possible.
¢ self-isolate for 10 days.

You should also:

e Advise the Meeting organiser so they can arrange to assess and carry out
additional cleaning.

e Continue to observe social distancing.

¢ Do not remain in the building any longer than necessary.

e Do not visit any other areas of the building before you leave.

If you receive a positive test result, or if you develop any symptoms before Full
Council is due to take place, you must not attend the meeting.

If you test positive for coronavirus after the Meeting, you should:

¢ Notify the Democratic Services department of the Council immediately, either
by emailing: democratic.services@york.gov.uk, or telephoning: 01904
551043.

Page 2 of 2


mailto:democratic.services@york.gov.uk

Page 3 Agenda Item 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee
Date 17 June 2021

Present Councillors Barker, Daubeney, Douglas,

Fenton, Hollyer, Warters, Pavlovic (Vice-
Chair), Fisher (Chair), Widdowson
(Substitute), Crawshaw (Substitute), Rowley
(Substitute), Looker, Melly and Waudby

Apologies Councillors Ayre, D'Agorne, Doughty and
Lomas
27. Declarations of Interest

28.

29.

Members were asked to declare, at this point in the meeting,
any personal interests, not included on the Register of Interests,
or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests they may
have in respect of business on the agenda. Clir Rowley
declared a non-prejudicial interest in agenda item 4b [Cherry
Tree House, 218 Fifth Avenue, York YO31 OPN [20-02034-
FULM] as he had a previous working relationship with the Agent
for the Applicant for the application. Two further non prejudicial
interests were declared. Cllr Melly declared a non-prejudicial
interest as she had joined Heworth Tennis Club which would
potentially benefit from S106 funding. Cllr Douglas declared a
non-prejudicial interest as the Ward Councillor for item 4b.
There were no further declarations of interest.

Minutes

Resolved: That the minutes of the last meeting held on 21 April
2021 be approved and signed by the chair as a
correct record.

Public Participation

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at

the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on
general matters within the remit of the Planning Committee.



30.

31.

Page 4

Plans List

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Assistant
Director, Planning and Public Protection, relating to the following
planning applications, outlining the proposals and relevant
policy considerations and setting out the views of consultees
and officers.

Plumbase, Waterloo House, Fawcett Street, York YO10 4AH
[20/01521/FULM]

Members considered a major full application from KMRE Group
(Church Fenton) Limited for the erection of three buildings to
form 48 apartments with associated works and infrastructure
following the demolition of existing building at Cherry Tree
House 218 Fifth Avenue York YO31 OPN. It was highlighted that
the item had previously been deferred.

The Head of Development Services gave a presentation on the
application, which was followed by an update informing
Members of the change of recommendation to approve the
application subject to completion of S106 agreement. Members
were updated on the contribution towards open space, loss of
retail space and of a minor amendment to Condition 22. The
additional information had been and the planning balance
remained unchanged from the published report.

Following the presentation and update, Members asked Officers

a number of questions to which they responded that:

e There was no national guidance on the size of communal
space and this would vary from scheme to scheme.
Outdoor amenity space could be conditioned.

The change in amenity space was nominal.

There was no reduction in the number of rooms.

Student accommodation was included as contributing to

housing need.

e There was no specification for student accommodation in
the draft Local Plan.

e The developer could be asked to provide information on
the collection and drop off of students. It was not
anticipated that there was a need to change highways for
this.



Page 5

¢ An additional condition could be added regarding
designing out crime, as requested by the police.

e The location of the cycle store was confirmed. There were
48 covered and secure cycle spaces.

e An obscure opaque covering could be requested as part
of condition 17.

e The comparisons to the accommodation on Lawrence
Street were explained.

e A variation to loading and unloading 8am to 6pm Monday
to Friday could be added.

Public Speakers

Gary Swarbrick, Agent for the Applicant, spoke in support of the
application. He explained that the scheme was high quality
purpose built student accommodation. He detailed the facilities
in the apartments, which were all single occupancy, comparable
with other similar developments in the city. He noted that there
was no adopted policy regarding room sizes. He explained that
there were robust management arrangements for students
moving in and out and that there would be no deliveries around
peak times and at school drop off times.

In response to questions from Members, Mr Swarbrick and
colleagues (available to answer questions) explained that:

e They would be happy for no deliveries before 9am to be
conditioned.

e They would look to undertake the demolition of the
existing building during the school holidays and for large
deliveries to be outside school hours.

e Regarding concern about the lack of communal space, as
the accommodation was close to the city centre and
university, students could socialise elsewhere and it was
felt that the communal space was acceptable.

e They accepted the concerns of students being isolated
and the effect of this on their mental health. They noted
that there was no correlation between student mental
health and the scheme.

e The original scheme was for 100+ units, which had been
reduced and it was felt that the scheme was acceptable. It
was noted that there was an outdoor amenity space.

e The changes made to the original scheme were outlined.
They would consider losing one unit one the ground floor
to create an amenity space.



Page 6

e The inclusion of a communal space on each floor would
create problems with the viability of the scheme and the
offer of one further amenity space was more than that of
comparable schemes.

e The outdoor amenity space was included s communal
space on the landscape plan and there was an element of
control due to the neighbours. A retractable awning would
be considered.

e There was two disabled spaces, which was felt adequate
for a scheme of that size.

e The cycle and parking provision was of a similar level to
similar schemes and any further spaces would affect
amenity space. The style of cycle parking was explained.

e There had been no consultation with the universities
regarding the accommodation. A study by the CBRE
showed that there was a demand for that type of
accommodation.

e The intention for heating was photo voltaic or and ground
source heat pump. The design included space for a
ground source heat pump. Thermal modelling would be
undertaken.

[The meeting adjourned from 17:45 to 17:55]

Members were given the opportunity to ask officers further
questions. Officers were asked and clarified that:
e The scheme was submitted to show the loss of one unit
and provision of amenity space.
e Student accommodation came under the NPPF definition
of homes and counted towards the delivery of 1000
homes per year.

Cllr Crawshaw moved refusal of the application on the grounds
that the scheme did not meet the NPPF requirements for the
development to be safe, inclusive and promote health and
wellbeing. This was seconded by Clir Melly. Following debate
a named vote was taken with the following result:

e Cllrs Barker, Crawshaw, Douglas, Looker, Melly, Rowley,
Warters, Waudby, Widdowson and Fisher voted for the
motion;

e ClIrs Daubeney, Fenton, Hollyer and Pavlovic voted against
the motion

The motion was carried and it was



3la

Page 7

Resolved: That the application be refused.

Reason: The application fails to meet the tests in paragraph
3.24 of the NPPF due to the lack of usable amenity
space.

[The meeting adjourned from 18:25 to 18:32]

Cherry Tree House, 218 Fifth Avenue, York YO31 OPN [20-
02034-FULM]

Members considered a major full application from Cherry Tree
Venture LLP for the erection of three buildings to form 48
apartments with associated works and infrastructure following
the demolition of existing building at Cherry Tree House 218
Fifth Avenue York YO31 OPN.

The Head of Development Services gave a presentation on the
applications and updated the Committee on a correction to
paragraph 5.10 of the committee report noting that the site was
wrongly identified and was not allocated in the Local Plan and
the education allocation related to the adjoining presbytery and
community centre. As a result the planning balance and
recommendation remained unchanged from the published
report.

Officers were asked and clarified that:

e The education allocation was staying the same.

e Access had been assessed by highways officers and it
was acceptable to use the existing access points.

e The depth of the aisle was sufficient for vehicles turning.

e The landscaping to the rear of the site was being retained
and the regarding planting trees on the verge, the verge
was not within the line of the application site.

e There was no affordable housing and an offsite
contribution would be made.

e The site had been granted vacant building credit and this
was explained in the context of the NPPF and the
application was policy compliant.

e The location of the cycle and bin storage and electric
vehicle charging were explained.

e There was external amenity and good levels of light from
the way the apartments were set out.



Page 8

¢ [t was not reasonable to condition proof of first time buyers
buying the apartments.

e Housing officers were satisfied with the scheme and it was
confirmed that there was a need for one two bedroom
properties in the area.

e The retained landscaping would fall under the existing
landscaping condition.

e There were not enough two bedroomed units for a S106
contribution to education.

Public Speakers

Killian Gallagher, the Agent for the Applicant, spoke in support
of the application. He explained that Cherry Tree House has
been sold by the NHS as it was surplus to requirements. No
offers had been received to retain the building for its use. He
explained the intended buyers of the apartments, that the
design was energy efficient and measures in place for energy
efficiency, cycle and car parking (including electric vehicle
charging). In answer to questions from the Committee he and
the Architect (in attendance to answer questions) confirmed
that:

e The Applicant in principle had no issue with putting in
trees in the proviso that this could done technically. They
would also be willing to make a contribution towards trees
as part of the S106 agreement.

¢ |t was intended that the development would begin as soon
as possible.

e The scheme was in line with national policy and the
development of brownfield sites. It was felt that £135,000
for an apartment in York within walking distance of the city
centre was considered affordable.

e Purchasers would own a share of the freehold and would
make their own decisions on this.

e The retention of properties with owner occupiers would be
similar to that of the Aura developments. A condition on
the number of days for invites of advance offers from first
time buyers fell outside planning policy.

e Regarding the increase in property prices, lower prices
would mean a lower percentage increase in the prices of
the apartments.

[At this point the Senior Solicitor advised Members that the
application was not for an affordable housing scheme].



Page 9

e The entry point of £130-£140,000 was at a level
accessible for first time buyers and the provision for
affordable housing would be made by way of an offsite
contribution.

¢ An explanation of the purchase of the site was given.

e The allocation of disabled parking spaces was noted.

e There was no direct access to the cycle track adjacent to
the site as this this was not possible due to the typography
of the site.

Members then asked officers further questions to which officers
clarified that:
e There was no time limit in applying for vacant building
credit.
e The sports contribution would go to publicly available
sports sites in the area.

During debate, officers advised the Committee that S106

agreements needed to meet statutory requirements. Clir

Warters moved approval subject to the inclusion of red bricks

being used, seconded by ClIr Rowley. Following debate a

named vote was taken with the following result:

e CllIrs Barker, Crawshaw, Daubeney, Douglas, Fenton, Hollyer
Looker, Melly, Pavlovic, Rowley, Warters, Waudby,
Widdowson and Fisher voted for the motion;

The motion was unanimously carried and it was

Resolved: That the application be approved subject to the
landscaping condition being amended to in
perpetuity, and addition of an informative for red
bricks to be incorporated into the building and for a
S106 contribution for tree planting if so required
following consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair
of the Committee.

Reason:

I.  This site within a sustainable residential location has
become available for redevelopment as it is no longer
required by the NHS. The form of the building is such that
its retention would not result in an optimal use of the site
and so demolition and redevelopment is being supported.



Page 10

ii. Para.ll of the NPPF sets out that decisions should apply
a presumption in favour of sustainable development.
Para.11d notes that where there are no relevant
development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date
(this includes applications for housing where a 5 year
housing land supply cannot be demonstrated) then
applications should be granted permission. The Council
cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year housing land
supply and the site is not within the Green Belt or impacts
on a designated heritage asset and therefore the
presumption in favour of sustainable development should

apply.

lii. The scheme provides 48 new flats with good levels of
amenity for future residents and without significantly
harming to the amenity of neighbours. The existing
building is of little architectural merit and will be replaced
by a development which enhances the local area.
Financial contributions towards affordable housing,
amenity open space, play areas, sports facilities and
upgrades to the local cycle network will also be secured
via a legal agreement.

iv. The proposal is considered to meet draft Local Plan policy
and policy contained within the NPPF and is therefore
recommended for approval subject to conditions and the
undertaking of a legal agreement.

Clir T Fisher, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 8.06 pm].



Page 11 Agenda Item 4a
COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 5 August 2021 Ward: Fishergate
Team: East Area Parish: Fishergate Planning
Panel
Reference: 21/00116/FUL
Application at: Frederick House Fulford Road York YO10 4EG
For: Variation of condition 2 of permitted application 19/00603/FULM

seeking amendments to external appearance,
landscaping, internal arrangements, substation, refuse and cycle

stores
By: Laura Pennington
Application Type: Full Application
Target Date: 12 August 2021

Recommendation: Approve subject to Section 106 Agreement

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 The site is a roughly rectangular parcel of land located off Fulford Road (A19),
approximately 1.2 kilometres south of York city centre. The existing vehicular access
for Frederick House is via a one way loop road off Fulford Road which is shared with
North Yorkshire Police who are located directly to the south of the site. To the north
of the site, Kilburn Road runs parallel with the site. There is woodland to the east
and beyond that Walmgate Stray.

1.2 The western part of the site, including the Guard House (fronting Fulford Road)
lies within the Fulford Road Conservation Area. Two trees within this area are also
subject to a tree preservation order. These are a Horse chestnut and a Sycamore.
The site used to contain Frederick House, a monolithic three storey flat roof office.

1.3 Following the grant in 2020 of full planning permission for student
accommodation for 368 rooms on the site, development has commenced. The
ownership of the site has changed since planning permission was granted and the
new owners as applicants seek to make some revisions to the scheme.

1.4 The proposal before planning committee is a variation of condition 2 (approved

plans) of permitted application 19/00603/FULM seeking amendments to external
appearance, landscaping, internal arrangements, substation, refuse and cycle

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 12

stores. The six student accommodation buildings will remain as four storeys in
height and are referred to as buildings B to G, running roughly west to east.

1.5 In detail the proposed amendments are set out below along with the
applicant’s rationale for the amendments.

Building Height

1.6 Through the detailed design stage, it has become apparent that the parapet
heights on the pitched roofs of Blocks E, F & G do not allow sufficient height to
insulate and waterproof the buildings to Building Regulation standards. To offset any
Impact, it is proposed to drop the previously consented taller parapet sections or
‘step-ups’ on Blocks B, C & D.

1.7 Compared to the previously approved heights (19/00603/FULM) the changes
will be as follows:

Block B will be reduced from 12.2 metres in height to 11.9 metres in height.

Block C will be reduced from 12.2 metres to 11.7 metres in height

Block D will be reduced from 12.2 metres to 11.9 metres in height

Block E has a varied roof height. The highest point will remain at a maximum of 13.2
metres in height but there will be a increases of up to 0.2 metres elsewhere to the
roof height.

Block F will be increased from 12.8 metres to a maximum of 13.05 metres

Block G will be increased from 12.8 metres to 13.05 metres

Replacement of timber cladding with brick

1.8 In context of current industry issues with flammable building facade materials
an public / investor perceptions applicant has requested the timber cladding be
omitted.

Removal of Juliet balconies

1.9 They served no functional purpose as the windows / doors not being openable
and would hinder the maintenance and cleaning of the windows.

Relocation of plant room

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 13

1.10 The plant room and substation have swapped locations to reduce the access
distance of utilities between the substation.

Green Roof to Substation & Plant Room

1.11 The utility company has objected to the inclusion of a green roof above the
sub station on the grounds of safety. As the substation and plantroom structures are
proposed to swap the substation structure is now adjacent the car park of the public
house. The plant room structure will be constructed with a sedum roof as illustrated
in the revised landscape drawing.

Landscaping

1.12 Alterations are proposed following conversations with Fire Officers regarding
turning circles at the eastern end of the access road.

Planning History

1.13 There is extensive planning history relating to the former building at the site.
The planning permission for the redevelopment of the site is:

19/00603/FULM - Erection of 6no. purpose-built 4 storey student accommodation
buildings (providing 368 bedrooms), associated change of use of and alterations to
existing 'Guard House' building to multi-amenity use associated with the
accommodation, construction of energy/plant facility, car and cycle parking,
refuse/recycling storage and landscaping (re-submission of withdrawn application
18/02797/FULM) — Approved.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

National Planning Policy Framework

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the government's
planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied.

2.2 The planning system should contribute to the achievement of sustainable
development (Paragraph 7). To achieve sustainable development, the planning

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 14

system has three overarching objectives; economic, social and environmental
objectives.

2.3 Paragraph 14 advises that at the heart of the Framework there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development. Paragraph 11 states planning
decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development and that
for decision taking this means where there are no relevant development plan
policies, granting permission unless i. the application of policies in the NPPF that
protect areas or assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing
the development proposed; or

li. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies of the NPPF take as a whole.

Publication Draft Local Plan 2018

2.4 The Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 2018 ('2018 Draft Plan’) was
submitted for examination on 25 May 2018, with initial hearings taking place in late
2019. In accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF the Draft Plan policies can be
afforded weight according to:

-The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and
- The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (NB: Under transitional
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be
assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

2.5 The evidence base underpinning the 2018 Draft Plan is capable of being a
material consideration in the determination of planning applications.

2.6 Relevant Policies

H7  Student Housing

D1 Placemaking

D2 Landscape and Setting

D4 Conservation Areas
ENV2Managing Environmental Quality

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 15

2005 Development Control Local Plan

2.7 The Development Control Local Plan (DCLP) was approved for development
management purposes in April 2005. Whilst the DCLP does not form part of the
statutory development plan, its policies are considered to be capable of being
material considerations in the determination of planning applications where policies
relevant to the application are consistent with those in the NPPF albeit with very
limited weight.

3.0 CONSULTATIONS
INTERNAL

Design and Sustainable Construction (Design)

3.1 Further to the recent re-consultation on design revisions uploaded to the
planning portal dated 8" June, confirm that these are in accordance with recent
applicant/CYC negotiations on design matters for this application.

Design and Sustainable Construction (Landscape Architect)

3.2 No objection to landscaping. With regard to tree protection, note their arboriculture
consultant’s additional note on the change to the paving under the existing trees near the
guard house. Whilst | think it leaves these two trees vulnerable to harm, | accept the view
taken by their expert. However the Arboricultural method statement will need to be altered to
suit the proposed change. Condition required.

EXTERNAL

Fishergate Planning Panel

3.3 The height of these buildings was a major concern in the initial responses to
the original application. To seek to increase the parapet height at this stage
suggests that the original proposals were at best either inadequately planned or
over hopeful. Surely the architects should be required to find a solution that does not
increase the height of the buildings.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



4.1

Page 16

The application has been advertised by neighbour notification, press notice

and site notice. 16 objections were received from local residents.

4.2

4.3

The issues raised in the objections are summarised below.

Loss of light

Buildings should be one storey lower and further away

Height of buildings — already built

Building shouldn’t have been approved before if changes required

Ideally whole development should be scrapped

Timber cladding should remain

Noise and light pollution

Why was original application submitted if it did not comply with building
regulations

proposal to raise the height of the buildings will add around another 2 metres
to that winter sunshine shadow across the neighbouring properties to the north
of the site,

in addition to reducing the visible skyline all year round

change of materials from timber to brick

timber is keeping with surrounding area

should be reduced to three storeys or internal floor heights reduced

what progress has been made on an alternative access route for students
across the Stray to campus, to avoid Kilburn Road and especially the
allotments.

Questioning loss of previously approved green roof

Over shadowing as a result of height increase and impacts in terms of light
and noise

Ward Clir D’Agorne requested the application be called to committee following

the concerns raised by residents over the height increases. Ward ClIr Taylor
objected to the proposal and supported the call making the following comments:

4.4

concern over the heights,

materials are of less concern to so long as the design is harmonious.

The removal of the Juliet balconies might also reduce the potential for noise as
well as increase safety so support that element

Following officer concerns, revised plans were submitted reducing the heights

of blocks B, C and D. The revised plans were re-consulted on one objection was
received.

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 17

- Reduction in heights of B, C and D does not overcome increase in heights of
E,Fand G

- Changes to timber cladding and design benefits not evidenced

- Examples of timber cladding elsewhere

- Lighting not on the landscape plans

- welcome the inclusion of larger trees in the planting plan & would ask that
consideration be given to including some large evergreen trees and not just
deciduous as building will dominate skyline in winter

5.0 APPRAISAL

5.1 This planning application is made under section 73 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 that relates to determination of applications to develop land
without compliance with conditions subject to which a previous planning permission
was granted. Given that an application under s.73 seeks to amend an approved
scheme, the development itself will have been judged to be acceptable in principle
at an earlier date. Consideration of the current application therefore is not about the
principle of the development, but rather the impact of the proposed amendments
and assessed in the light of current policy. Therefore the principle of the housing
development, highways and parking will not be revisited as these aspects are not
considered to be affected by the proposed amendments.

As such, it is considered that the key considerations are:

- impact on the character of the conservation area

- design

- impact on amenity and living conditions of adjacent occupiers
- trees

- sustainability LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT

5.2 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires
determinations be made in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. There is no development plan for this part of
York.

5.3 Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 requires that special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character and appearance of Conservation Areas.

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 18

IMPACT ON THE CHARACTER OF THE CONSERVATION AREA

5.4 Paragraph 197 of the NPPF states that with regard to heritage assets, (which
include conservation areas) when determining applications local planning authorities
should take account of:

a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets
and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local
character and distinctiveness.

5.5 Paragraph 199 advises that when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should
be given to the asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater
the weight should be). Paragraph 194 states that any harm to the significance of a
designated heritage asset from development within its setting should require clear
and convincing justification.

5.6 Policy D4 of the 2018 Draft Plan advises that harm to buildings, open spaces,
trees, views or other elements which make a positive contribution to a conservation
area will be permitted only where this is outweighed by the public benefits of the
proposal. Emerging Policy Gl4 seeks to retain trees that make a positive
contribution to a conservation area.

5.7 Part of the site lies within the Fulford Road conservation area. This part of the
site includes the ‘Guard House’ which fronts Fulford Road. This building was
included within the conservation area as it makes a positive contribution to the
character of the area through sympathetic architectural language and by reinforcing
the wall like characteristic of the barrack’s boundary.

5.8 The proposed amendments within the conservation area primarily comprise
the use of railings to the south west boundary treatment. Railings rather than a wall
have been deemed necessary by the Council’'s Landscape Architect to prevent
damage to the root protection area of protected trees. These changes have been
agreed as part of the approval of planning conditions with the previous permission
and are not objected to. The use of railings is considered acceptable and will
preserve the character of the conservation area and protect the tree roots.

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 19

DESIGN

5.9 Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure that
developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit;

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and
support local facilities and transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life
or community cohesion and resilience.

5.10 Paragraph 134 of the NPPF states that development that is not well designed
should be refused, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies and
government guidance on design. Paragraph 135 states Local planning authorities
should seek to ensure that the quality of approved development is not materially
diminished between permission and completion, as a result of changes being made
to the permitted scheme (for example through changes to approved details such as
the materials used).

5.11 Policy D1 of the 2018 Draft Plan states that proposals will be supported where
they improve poor existing urban and natural environments, enhance York’s special
gualities and better reveal the significances of the historic environment.
Development proposals that fail to take account of York’s special qualities, fail to
make a positive design contribution to the city, or cause damage to the character
and quality of an area will be refused. Emerging Policy HW7 encourages design
principles including well designed streetscapes, foot and cycle paths, spaces for

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 20

communities to come together and considerations of how design impacts on crime
or the perception of safety.

5.12 The revisions to the height are considered to be necessary by the applicant for
building regulations purposes. Concerns have been raised from residents over
whether this should have been considered by the applicant at the previous stage.
However, building regulations is separate to planning requirements and for the
purposes of this application it is just necessary to consider whether the revised
proposal is acceptable in planning terms. The Council’'s Design Manager has noted
that they “understand that industry-wide fire safety (and insurance) concerns about
using timber on facades escalated relatively recently and it is accepted here that this
was not anticipated at the time of the permitted scheme.”

5.13 The height increases are modest and have been restricted to three of the six
buildings. The loss of the timber cladding to parts of the buildings and its
replacement with brick will decrease the variety of materials at the development.
However, brick is a prevalent building material in York, including for blocks of this
scale. There will still be some variety to the appearance with a mix of brick colours
to the buildings. The revised material palette is considered to be acceptable. The
loss of the Juliet balconies was supported by the Council Design Manager who
noted that balconies were rather randomly located in the permitted scheme and did
not consider their loss to be detrimental to the architectural design or internal
function/amenity.

LANDSCAPING

Paragraph 131 of the NPPF states that trees make an important contribution to the
character and quality of urban environments, and can also help mitigate and adapt
to climate change. Planning decisions should ensure that new streets are tree-lined,
that appropriate measures are in place to secure the long-term maintenance of
newly-planted trees, and that existing trees are retained wherever possible.

5.14 Emerging Policy D2 considers landscaping and setting for design proposals.
The loss of the green roof to the substation is as a result of an objection from the
utility company on maintenance and safety grounds due to increase weight and
holding of water on the roof, with a letter of support provided by them.

5.15 The revisions to the landscaping ensure there is a good amount of green
space retained within the development. The key change is to allow for a turning

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 21

circle for emergency and service vehicles at the eastern end of the site. This will
result in an increase in hardstanding area, however the applicant is utilising block
paving with grass inserts and the Council’'s Landscape Architect is content with this.
In terms of tree protection, the revised plans will retain the two mature trees
adjacent to the Guard House and these will be protected by condition. The boundary
treatment has been amended from a wall to railings to provide better protection for
the root protection areas.

IMPACT ON AMENITY

5.16 The NPPF states that developments should create places with a high standard
of amenity for all existing and future users. It goes on to state that decisions should
avoid noise from giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality of
life as a result of new development. Policies D1 and ENV2 of the 2018 Draft Plan
consider amenity. The key issues with regard to amenity that concerns this
application are noise, light and the levels of comings and goings associated with the
development.

5.17 Following objections from local residents and concerns raised by officers, the
design was further reviewed and the height increases have been restricted to
buildings E, F and G at the eastern end of the site, with slight reductions to buildings
B, C and D. The parapet height increases are less than 0.3 metres, which is a
modest increase in height within the context of the site and also taking into account
the distance of the buildings from dwellings to the north. Building E is staggered in
design with a minimum distance from the dwellings on Kilburn Road of
approximately 36 metres. Building F is set back from the northern boundary and is
approximately 43 metres to the south of the houses on Kilburn Road. Building G is
oriented side on to the houses on Kilburn Road with the narrower side elevation
facing them. Furthermore the northern section of Building G is single storey in height
6 metres in width. It is still located approximately 42 metres from the nearest
dwelling.

5.18 The length and width of the blocks remain the same and the height increase is
to only three of the buildings, one of which is set well back from the boundary.
Furthermore the buildings are all in excess of 35 metres south of the rear elevations
of houses on Kilburn Road. The increase in height is modest, under 0.3 metres, and
at a considerable distance. It is not considered to have an unacceptable impact on
amenity with regard to loss of light or being overbearing.

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 22

OTHER MATTERS

5.19 Public representation was made regarding the progress of a route across
Walmgate Stray for students, however this is not for consideration as the amended
condition does not affect this.

5.20 A permission granted under section 73 takes the form of a fresh planning
permission sitting alongside the original permission, which remains intact and
unamended. Therefore the new section 73 permission should repeat the relevant
conditions from the original planning permission.

5.21 The previously approved planning application at the site was subject to a
section 106 Agreement which secured a number of planning obligations to mitigate
the proposal. A Deed of Variation to that legal agreement will be secured to ensure
that those obligations are also linked to the new permission.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states that for decision taking, applications should
be approved unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this
Framework taken as a whole. The revisions to the design are considered to have a
neutral impact on the overall design of the scheme, with a modest height increase to
three buildings balanced against reductions to three other buildings. The removal of
timber cladding does not adversely impact on the overall design of the scheme and
the removal of the Julie balconies is supported. The landscaping changes have
been considered by the Council’'s Landscape Architect and are supported overall.
With regard to amenity, the increase in the height of three blocks is mitigated by the
modest increase of the height change and their distance from the dwellings to the
north on Kilburn Road. The development also retains clear gaps between the blocks
preventing a terracing effect. The proposed amendments are considered to comply
with the relevant policies set out in the NPPF and the 2018 Draft Plan. The proposal
would also satisfy Section 72(1) of the of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 which requires the Local Authority to pay special
attention to the desirability of preserving the character and appearance of
Conservation Areas within its area. Approval is recommended subject to conditions.

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 23

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve subject to Section 106 Agreement

1
following plans:-

1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0229 -
1077-TGA-XX-00-DR-A-2109 F
(415)1808-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-0017
(415)1808-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-0018
Elevations
(415)1808-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-0019
(415)1808-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-0020
Elevations and Sections
1077-TGA-ZZ-00-DR-A-0220
1077-TGA-ZZ-01-DR-A-0221
1077-TGA-ZZ-02-DR-A-0222
1077-TGA-ZZ-03-DR-A-0223
1077-TGA-ZZ-04-DR-A-0224
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0520
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0521
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0522
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0523
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0524
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0525
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0526
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0527
3473101 M Landscape Layout
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-9002 E

B
A
A
A
B
B
B
B
B
B
B
B
B

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the

Site Location Plan

Substation
P05 Guard House Demolition Plan
P05 Guard House Demolition

P05 Guard House Floor Plans
PO5 Guard House Proposed

Proposed Ground Floor Plan
Proposed First Floor Plan
Proposed Second Floor Plan
Proposed Third Floor Plan
Proposed Roof Plan

Block B Elevations 01

Block B Elevations 02

Block C and D Elevations 01
Block C and D Elevations 02
Block E, F and G Elevations 01
Block E, F and G Elevations 02
Block E and F Elevations
Block G Elevations

Cycle Parking Plan

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried

out only as approved by the Local Planni

2

ng Authority.

The foul and surface water drainage works shall be carried out in accordance

with the details approved under reference AOD/20/00301.
Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these details for

the proper drainage of the site.

3  The development shall be carried
under reference AOD/21/00037.

out using the approved materials agreed

Reason: So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL

Item No: 4a



Page 24

4  Large scale details of the items listed below, approved under reference
AOD/21/00023, shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Detailed bay elevations and sections for all fenestration types including ground to
roof level parts to demonstrate interfaces at scale 1:20

Window reveals and wall pane recesses at scale 1:10

Details of all fixed equipment to the exterior of the proposed buildings.

The Guard House window reveal at scale 1:10

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these details

5  The development shall not be occupied until a detailed landscaping scheme in
accordance with the approved General arrangement and Planting strategy has been
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. This shall include
the species, stock size, density (spacing), and position of trees, shrubs and other
plants; and seed mixes, sowing rates and mowing regimes where applicable. It will
also include details of ground preparation; tree planting details; paving, and street
furniture. The proposed tree planting shall be compatible with existing and proposed
utilities. This scheme as approved shall be implemented within a period of six
months of the practical completion of the development. Any trees or plants which
within a period of ten years from the substantial completion of the planting and
development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless
the Local Planning Authority agrees alternatives in writing.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety,
suitability and disposition of species and other landscape details across the site,
since the landscape scheme, is integral to the amenity of the development.

6 A suitably qualified arboriculturalist shall carry out regular inspections and
supervision of works as necessary during development operations to ensure the
proposed protection measures within the approved method statement are strictly
applied and adhered to. In the first instance the appointed arboriculture consultant
shall inspect and confirm that all tree protection fencing and ground protection is in
place before the relevant construction starts on site. Any incidents and/or deviations
from the approved AMS shall be monitored. The appointed arboriculture consultant
shall record all site visits and observations and any actions taken. These records
shall be made available for inspection by the Local Authority if requested.

Reason: To ensure every effort and reasonable duty of care has been exercised by
the developer during the development in the interests of protecting the existing trees
shown to be retained.

7  The development hereby approved shall be occupied only for the purposes of
student accommodation by either students engaged at all times in full-time or part-
time further or higher education courses within the City of York administrative
boundary or by delegates at all times attending courses or conferences within the

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 25
City.

Reason: In order to control the future occupancy of the development in the event of
it any part of it being sold or rented on the open market without securing adequate
levels of affordable housing, in accordance with Policy H7 of the 2018 Publication
Draft Plan.

8  The archaeological scheme comprises 3-5 stages of work. Every stage shall
be completed and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA) before the
condition can be discharged.

B) The site investigation and post-investigation assessment shall be completed in
accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation
approved under AOD/21/00027 and the provision made for analysis, publication and
dissemination of results and archive deposition will be secured. This part of the
condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in
accordance with the programme set out in the WSI.

C) A copy of a report on the evaluation and an assessment of the impact of the
proposed development on any of the archaeological remains identified in the
evaluation shall be deposited with City of York Historic Environment Record to allow
public dissemination of results within 6 weeks of completion or such other period as
may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

D) Where archaeological features and deposits are identified proposals for the
preservation in-situ, or for the investigation, recording and recovery of
archaeological remains and the publishing of findings shall be submitted as an
amendment to the original WSI. It should be understood that there shall be
presumption in favour of preservation in-situ wherever feasible.

E) No development (other than demolition to present ground level) shall take place
until:

- details in D have been approved and implemented on site

- provision has been made for analysis, dissemination of results and archive
deposition has been secured

- a copy of a report on the archaeological works detailed in Part D should be
deposited with City of York Historic Environment Record within 3 months of
completion or such other period as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority.

This condition is imposed in accordance with Section 16 of NPPF.

Reason: The site lies within an area of archaeological interest. An investigation is
required to identify the presence and significance of archaeological features and
deposits and ensure that archaeological features and deposits are either recorded

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 26

or, if of national importance, preserved in-situ.

9 A programme of archaeological building recording, specifically a written
description and photographic recording of the Guard House and any other historic
structures on site to Historic England Level 2 is required for this application. The
archaeological scheme comprises 3 stages of work. Each stage shall be completed
and approved by the Local Planning Authority before it can be discharged.

B) The programme of recording and post investigation assessment shall be
completed in accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of
Investigation approved under AOD/20/00239 and the provision made for analysis,
publication and dissemination of results and digital archive deposition with ADS will
be secured. This part of the condition shall not be discharged until these elements
have been fulfilled in accordance with the programme set out in the WSI.

C) A copy of a report shall be deposited with City of York Historic Environment
Record and digital archive images with ADS to allow public dissemination of results
within 3 months of completion or such other period as may be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority.

This condition is imposed in accordance with Section 16 of NPPF.

Reason: The buildings on this site are of archaeological interest and must be
recorded prior to alteration or removal of fabric.

10 The detailed scheme of noise insulation measures for protecting current and
proposed residents from externally generated noise shall be carried out in
accordance with the details approved under reference AOD/20/00272. Upon
completion of the insulation scheme works no part of the development shall be
occupied until a noise report demonstrating compliance with the approved noise
insulation scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

INFORMATIVE: The building envelope of all residential accommodation shall be
constructed so as to achieve internal noise levels in habitable rooms of no greater
than 35 dB LAeq (16 hour) during the day (07:00-23:00 hrs) and 30 dB LAeq (8
hour) and LAFMax level during the night (23:00-07:00 hours) should not exceed
45dB(A) on more than 10 occasions in any night time period in bedrooms and
should not regularly exceed 55dB(A). These noise levels shall be observed with all
windows open in the habitable rooms or if necessary windows closed and other
means of ventilation provided.

Reason: To protect the amenity of people living in the new property from externally
generated noise and in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 27

11 The details of all machinery, plant and equipment to be installed in or located
on the premises, which is audible outside of the premises shall be installed or
located as per the details approved under reference AOD/21/00007. The machinery,
plant or equipment and any approved noise mitigation measures shall be fully
implemented and operational before the proposed use first opens and shall be
appropriately maintained thereatfter.

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the environmental qualities
of the area.

12  The lighting levels achieved at the development shall not exceed those stated
in the lighting report by Desco dated: 1 September 2019 reference: 1809-60-RPT-
01-External Lighting Assessment Report.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the surrounding area.

13 There shall be no external lighting between the hours of 23:00hrs and
07:00hrs by obtrusive lights (as defined in the External Lighting Assessment Report
by Desco dated 3rd September 2019 as A1 and C1) at the site, other than those
necessary for emergency and security lighting. A scheme outlining which lights will
be switched off between these hours shall be submitted to and agreed by the Local
Authority in writing before use of the site commences and the curfew implemented in
accordance with the said scheme as approved thereatfter.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the surrounding area

14  All means of enclosure to the site boundaries shall be provided in accordance
with the details approved under reference AOD/20/00301 before the development is
occupied.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and the amenities of
neighbouring properties.

15 Prior to first occupation or use of the development hereby approved four
integrated features providing a roosting crevice for bats must be constructed across
the site within the fabric of the new buildings, and four Swift nest boxes.

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest of the
area.

16 The building shall not be occupied until the cycle parking areas and means of
enclosure have been provided within the site in accordance with details approved
under reference AOD/20/00272, and these areas shall not be used for any purpose
other than the parking of cycles.

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 28

Reason: To promote use of cycles thereby reducing congestion on the adjacent
roads and in the interests of the amenity of neighbours.

17 HWAY19 Car and cycle parking laid out

18 Before the occupation of the development 1 Electric Vehicle Recharging Point
shall be provided and retained in a position and to a specification to be first agreed
in writing by the Council. Charging points should be located in a prominent position
on the site and should be for the exclusive use of zero emission vehicles. Parking
bay marking and signage should reflect this. The charge points should include
sufficient cabling and groundwork to upgrade that unit and to provide for an
additional Electrical Vehicle Recharging Point of the same specification, should
demand require this in this future. Within 3 months of the first occupation of the
development, the owner will submit to the Council for approval in writing an Electric
Vehicle Recharging Point Maintenance Plan that will detail the maintenance,
servicing and networking arrangements for each Electric Vehicle Recharging Point
for a period of 10 years. The approved Electric Vehicle Recharging Point
Maintenance Plan shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with its terms

Reason: To promote and facilitate the uptake of electric vehicles on the site in line
with the Council's Low Emission Strategy (LES) and the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF).

19 The Carbon Emission Reduction Measurese shall be carried out in
accordance with the details approved under reference AOD/20/00285.

Reason: In the interests of sustainable design and in accordance with policies CC1
and CC2 of the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018.

20 LC3 Land contamination - remedial works

21 LC4 Land contamination - unexpected contam

22  Except in case of emergency no demolition and construction works or ancillary
operations, including deliveries to and dispatch from the site which are audible
beyond the boundary of the site shall take place on site other than between the
hours of 08:00-18:00 Monday to Friday and between 09:00-13:00 on Saturdays.

The Local Planning Authority shall be notified at the earliest opportunity of the
occurrence of any such emergency and a schedule of essential work shall be
provided.

Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents

23 The development shall be constructed in accordance with the Construction
Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 29

Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) approved under reference
AOD/20/00229.
Reason: To protect the amenity of the locality

24  The site shall thereafter be occupied in accordance with the aims, measures
and outcomes of the Travel Plan approved under reference AOD/20/00301.

Within 12 months of occupation of the site a first year travel survey shall have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Results of
yearly travel surveys shall then be submitted annually to the authority's travel plan
officer for approval.

Reason: To ensure that traffic flows from the site can be safely accommodated and
to promote the usage of sustainable means of transport.

25 The area shown as 'potential future cycle storage' on drawing no (415) 1808-
GEP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-0007-P12 shall be reserved for cycle parking only at all
times throughout the lifetime if the development unless it is first agreed in writing
with the local planning authority that it is no longer necessary for this purpose.

Reason: To encourage the use of sustainable transport modes.

26 A full 3 stage road safety audit carried out with advice set out in the DMRB
HD19/03 and guidance issued by the Council, will be required for the internal
highway layout and all off-site works requiring alteration, stage 1 of which was
approved under reference AOD/21/00007.

Reason: To minimise the road safety risks associated with the changes imposed by
the development.

27  The front and rear pedestrian/cycle access doors to the Guard House shall be
automatically operated.

Reason: To encourage the use of sustainable transport.

28 The development hereby permitted shall not come into use until the following
highway works ((a) creation of shared use footway cycleway on east side of Fulford
Road from the existing pelican crossing on Fulford Road north of the site to join the
existing shared use footway cycleway on east side of Fulford Road south of the site
and (b) extending the length of the central refuge situated on Fulford Road south of
Wenlock Terrace) have been carried out in accordance with the approved plans, or
arrangements entered into which ensure the same.

Reason: In the interests of the safe and free passage of highway users.

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 30

29 The survey of on street parking on highways within an area agreed with the
local planning authority under reference AOD/20/00313 shall be carried out
annually. The surveys shall be carried out to a specification and at a time agreed
with the local planning authority.

Within three months of the annual survey being carried out, the developer will review
the on street parking survey results and submit the review to the local planning
authority to demonstrate whether the volume of on street parking in any of the areas
shown on the plan has increased by more than 20% of the first annual survey as a
consequence of the development.

Reason: To monitor on-street parking levels as result of the development and to
determine if as a result of the development, further previously agreed measures are
required to be undertaken by developer to restrict on street parking in this areas.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome:

Revised plans

2. INFORMATIVE:

The developer's attention is drawn to the various requirements for the control of
noise on construction sites laid down in the Control of Pollution Act 1974. In order to
ensure that residents are not adversely affected by air pollution and noise, the
following guidance should be adhered to, failure to do so could result in formal
action being taken under the Control of Pollution Act 1974

(@) All demolition and construction works and ancillary operations, including
deliveries to and despatch from the site shall be confined to the following hours:

Monday to Friday 08.00 to 18.00
Saturday 09.00 to 13.00
Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

(b)The work shall be carried out in such a manner so as to comply with the general
recommendations of British Standards BS 5228: Part 1. 1997, a code of practice for
"Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open Sites" and in particular

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



Page 31

Section 10 of Part 1 of the code entitled "Control of noise and vibration".

(c) All plant and machinery to be operated, sited and maintained in order to minimise
disturbance. All items of machinery powered by internal combustion engines must
be properly silenced and/or fitted with effective and well-maintained mufflers in
accordance with manufacturers instructions.

(d) The best practicable means, as defined by Section 72 of the Control of Pollution
Act 1974, shall be employed at all times, in order to minimise noise emissions.

(e) All reasonable measures shall be employed in order to control and minimise dust
emissions, including sheeting of vehicles and use of water for dust suppression.

(f) There shall be no bonfires on the site
3. LEGAL AGREEMENT

Your attention is drawn to the existence of a legal obligation under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relating to this development

4. INFORMATIVE:

The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as
amended (section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any
wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development
does not provide a defence against prosecution under this act.

Trees and scrub are likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st
August inclusive. Trees and scrub are present on the application site and are to be
assumed to contain nesting birds between the above dates, unless a recent survey
has been undertaken by a competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity on
site during this period and has shown it is absolutely certain that nesting birds are
not present.

Contact details:

Case Officer: Tim Goodall
Tel No: 01904 551103

Application Reference Number: 21/00116/FUL Item No: 4a



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33

Frederick House Fulford Road York YO10 4EG

21/00116/FUL

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

kA
1=

13.1m

AR Centre

I

\\
|

Al

ai

90 h

|

b

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Scale :

14.0m

1:1974

Organisation

City of York Council

Department |Economy & Place
Comments Site Location Plan
SLA Number




This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Planning Committee

To be on Thursday 5" August 2021 at 4:30pm

Gg abed



21/00116/FUL - Frederick House, Fulford Road, York

Variation of condition 2 of permitted application 19/00603/FULM
seeking amendments to external appearance,
landscaping, internal arrangements, substation, refuse and cycle
stores.

COUNCIL

og abed



Site Location Plan

7 Canstance: Street
: 0RD Nancezie
yw K_I.EURN R MIS4a

|

Tel: +44 (OF1E1 570 1152
wear fimgrocmarchiiscts com
|

Copyright S 201§ Tim Groom Arohibeobs Limited.
o part of o

s
designs may be reproduced, In whoie or In part,
wheer In two of foree dimensions, distiuied or

BhoACaEyIg, FECording or oier Elecionic or
ALMA TERRACE -,

maral rights and he fght 1o be identied a3 the suthor
o the drauings or designs The drawings or designs.
hiate bewn sw=culed by the Copyright caner pursuant in
an sxchuslve Boence fo s client and S use of hege.
drawings or designs s Imied to B disnt by the i=ms
o the licence and ail such permissions and authorly
grani=d by the copyright owner under the licence tems
automatically fenminate upon the ferminagion of the
Ncence or in he event of any act of imschvency being
commiti=d by the Iicemsee. The copyright oamer
accests and can have no Babiity or responsioiity
‘whasoever for and In respect of any urauthorised or
urilcensed use of of any relance piaced upon hese
drawings or designs. Ko works of construction reiying
on fhese drawings of designs. ane pemitied under e
= of the atove licence of cihensise without e
Exnress written consent and authority of S copright
- owner.

Dimaneioning
Figured dimensions only o be taken from these:
- . . des. gs. Work to annctated
WENLOCK TERRAGE - * | /-1 | 3

lgrs
ariy. AL dimensices fo be chacked on se. ArchBacis
1o bee imformed Immediaely of any dlscrapancies before:

‘wark peaceeds. Drsuings ars to be read in coejuncsan
‘Wi reievant spacTicatong, siuctrs engnesrs ans

POLIGE SErVCE NGBSy dranings. Al 38, OFT sy 1

STATION designs confained In this document are o i

o
any wind pary save In accorcance with a e

e Copymght owner or with the: copyight qmn
: | — . permizsion and authority. (Q

Rev Description

Clent
| Watkin Jones
Progect
| Frederick House

Tite

Site Location Plan
|

Etatuz.
Planning
N
| Froject mmber Daie
= <! 1077 Jan 2021
CITY OF !

g Ciramn by Checked by

. D10 2 2 ] 100m cr CF

{ . ‘Scale FRevision

1 1:1250@A3
COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th August 2021 -]

1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0229



Previously Approved
Site Layout Plan

\
g CITY OF

YOR

COUNCIL

—
?“;.l L[]
Riin

|m [iaa

IL

[f——L

2

Site cwnership boundary,

Site development boundary,

Building Entrances,

Cyele/ pedestiian/vehicle/1envice route,

- Owitline of existing Frederick House,
Building Srorey Heights

Single storey building only
Existing Guard Houwse
Propased Mew Buildings
Cyclle Parking Provisions

Bin Store - provision on this plon 12 bins,

L\é el
- 3] | |
st |
*
| | I i
MG!—!E 230 Bl L4112
$G D - FL+13.40 BUDINGE -FLH318 [
+ | T+ Yy

ing % Masioeal Oy

Proposed Site Plan
Scale - 1:1000@A3

Suls Stationtanks - in cccordance with MEE
requir ements

Energy Cenire - in accordance with MLE
requirements

Patential future cyde stor, [to reach
AT cycle prav:?oﬂ s
Proposed Foor Levels

Exisfing trees retained - extracted from
Arboncultural survey reprt

>
@
1
1
1
1
1
1
.
O

Site Area within red line boundary 10,000m* / 1ha

Guaord House - Central 'Hub'

Ground & First Floars;

Area 295m° [per flocd)

Hub Accommaodation comprising;
Ceniral Admin Services

Toilets

Loundry

Gym

Sodal / Function Room
Private Study / Group Study
Rooms

Cinema Room

8¢ abed

Tokal parking 9 spaces (indudes 7 EA spaces)
* Visitor Cyde Parking Provision - 18
* Cyde provision internal/secure 194 (@53)%)

SCHEDULE OF ACCOMMODATION

Builing Type Totol backooms

& b -

0 SnudiosSndy bad [

[3 Studos 0

o Studios/nudy badk [0

[ Townboua 51

P Studios 51

& Townbaua 34
ZAB fnclude B8]

Landscapul‘? J external works shown indicatively -
refer to Ra-form Landscape Architect drowings

This dirawing based on O Data
Blue/Red line boundaries extracted from Met Geo
Environmentallopographical Survey - Drawing Ref
F1700845_MET-EXT-TOP-M2G_1

B AT RO R

S A R R

ot e
e SO

A cho e ok s ] e T

I

*, v

10m 20 30 a0 aQ

Q
ERTERREY T A

Scale - 1:1000 @43

City of York Council Planning Committee [

[ETEr—

[415}1808

" Frederick House Site, York

Proposed Site Plan

CWPA

AT TS
MO R O kR,

AT [

——- D Summix FHY Development Ltd

[riamal 41 5} 1808 -GWP- XX -0 0-DRt-A-

BACE AAFKIE.
FROLECT MAMGIRS.
LARBLOPT MRCITIET

(Fa)-0007

secke  1:1000 ||.".=.

Pl2

F———T |r.,.u..

251018 4».,..-.,,.......,..“.»0
sty oot aferire ety
i T geparch L | e g ch com

Drawing Sass 50 - WIF



Block B — North and

East Elevations

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

=

o [1] - a— P e PSS
Saas - s SR S
e

Block B North Elevation
1:100

— (] [¢]
=

Block B-East Elevation

1:100

City of \}ork Council Planning Committee Meegting - 5th August 2021 = - .
3 s = 12

g toacana.
The CopyTIGH ownar cacts a0 v n
bty of resccomiity tecantia
rcac of ame bcaranc ioe

e e plareing amasdTwt 150124
St oroinss Lo prte
o
Watkin Jones
Prez
Frederick House
=
Block B Elevations 01
e
Planning Amendment
Prect rurbar e
1077 Jan 2021
Dowan 3y Coachusty
CF
eae Rovmon
1: 100@A1 B

Drwndng W
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0520



Block B — South and
West Elevations

aies o 8 Grrraioes e coachad
Block B South Elevation ooy oo Ly

1:100 St o et
) e feation

S et o
A" me g wrendras 12012
3 Bovms g pit
FALMNSOm : : bty -U
won_ )
FrLismom
whe
Block B West Elevation
1:100
-
Watkin Jones
Prama
1 5 Frederick House
| | i i 11b 11a =
Matecias - -— - -
S e =) Block B Elevations 02
1 Pt Brick Cladeg -1 14
« I ot Caite 177 —— 7 18 L
\% CITY OF & | Wiahemtinic frkar ity Iucieg i — 5| | ‘ Planning Amendment
! EEmend . =N e e 5
! o 4 29 o 7 G 1077 Jan 2021
‘
.

Ak Satse ghed caver wickwe wih PIC fs

Vot et wad Cagpny wit L fren B c D E E g |
o o vl S st & it ] Conckas iy
5§ Light ik vers i prcjocting Y ol { ‘ MC CF
) B ik wwtcn lmade oty T aried

TE Vet ket ek Wb PP et farimd 13 L 7J 15 18 —

1 aewsn

|§ Weswtonc rber chacdng wih hurluordsd ports.

1

e
) | ! | 1: 100@A1 B
Dose gleoed eurwiss humd wakws dncsed ges W (50 fran

COUNCIL W b et City of York Council Planning g:ommittée Meéting - 5th Augyst 2021 12a &, 6

Cowsiog W
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0521




Blocks C and D —
North Elevations

$ane Ewabicn cr dewians 3 i = 3 et
By o v o 10 Koarce A0 8 Rach

i iy e et b g
Block C and D North Elevation e e i
1:100

509m

Block D — East and
West Elevations

n can e e
s 1o R e £ =t

Block D East Elevation Block D West Elevation

1:100

1:100 -
Watkin Jones
Praea
1 5 Frederick House
A | " | ; 11b 11a
o == ’ : = = o
| - ik -1 ; Block C & D Elevations 01
R ey F 5 " . -
I BaYEis Casty _ A = a
CITY OF et l | o ,. o i
§ e ‘ . s - ) . e s
il o) Pl bk vricnl e promcting Ve detel Drwen 3y Comcant ity
Mz-:mmm‘.:-m ‘ ) [ ] MC CF
. 1 1 Jis disl —— | = s
11 Westwiomrd Sebe clacdng wih hotizels it - | 1 1 1: 100@A1 B
13 Dodste ghowd surinies bared Wi, (tecaed ghes with PFC fean

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th Augyst 2021 : 12 12 7

Drwakog W
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0522




Blocks C and D —
South Elevations

Block C — West and
East Elevations

CITY OF

COUNCIL

Block C and D South Elevation

1:100

Block C West Elevation

1:100

Doutde glicmd it Daw whiows, ctacand g, wit P9 frsh
[T T——r—

P
e

City of York Council Planning Committee Me

FRMTRm

FRL 13880 m

Block C East Elevation
1:100

1ib 11a

134 . 15 1] U

eting - 5th August 2021 =

o
Watkin Jones

Praea

Fraderick House

™

Block C & D Elevations 02

o
Planning Amendment

Pried rutar Dute
1077 Jan 2021

rwan Couchad y

CF

Revaon

o
1: 100@A1

Sruakng e
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0523



FrLE AR m FRLtEen
WP ER i e ralece  veas —Fotee W vee

Block E — West and v i [ T ] - iy
East Elevations

FRL1S200m
wew |

FRLISECn
wEw

[FNEN S r——
- s [r—

o s e LA

ey — 1
Block E West Elevation @ Block E East Elevation g
1:100

1:100 Dranings e 5 30 wad 1 conpenction wie

plors

L
D B @
F i

Block F — West and
East Elevations

FRL12800m

R

Block F West Elevation @ Block F East Elevation

1:100 1:100

Ztem
Watkin Jones

Prasa
1 5 - - Fredenck House
1 a
e J = T o = | .y
Semnty i 1l Block £ & F Elevations
Rt Bk Clncing | 8 14

(— Praed runtac
1077

1

2 i | e

h birdore # . i~ e = ( Planning Amendment
CITY OF . K| 1| T [ e

H [

.

N

St i o v o 0 75 I G Jan 2021
e g v

)l ek vl e pramctie Y& ctsl A B c D E F { I 5
£ Lt ek vris i ot 1 oot I CF
<) Bl vk hetes et T8 el

e e ey with FSC feh — d

T M ond oo byl ke Sl Pae | 13 d 15 18 Sy ey

T2 et inta cingwin kst e L I 1: 100@A1 8

15 Do gl sumies harsed cncaed g, i PR e |

COUNCIL il City of York Council Planning Cpmmitte’e Meeting - 5th Augyst 2021 12 125 9

rwaing W
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0528




Blocks E, F and G —
North Elevations

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

-
Flup

BLOCK G BLOCKF

@ Block E F & G North Elevation
1:100

FRLENSe
WERSe

CONTINUED ABOVE

FRRTI0N
e

CONTINUED BELOW

BLOCKE
Block E F & G North Elevation (b)
1:100
1 5
7 | | | | 11b 11a
Mstorlals Ky C - - - - - - I I
1 Flod Bk Clncideg | I8 T 14
2 Light P Erex Cnsding -
3 BT Erex Cinsdny a o
“ Prvatetom vk @ b Ow cwodeg l_ = e
= T, ] _ B |
T A e e v 9 | 4 2 0 10 7 G
o v v o

. ) Pt bk vericel Soadr promcteg W A 8 c D E F

o
£ Light rc vk verticn: s rojectog 1 dedal
©) Bt boich vl head prjectng T8 deed

e City of York Council Planning Qommitte’é Meeting - 5th Augiuast 2021 122

10

0 e o1 £ w20v0 FCAnce of Ot
e eavtacs
aishern of B oG

Cha
Watkin Jones
Praea

Fregerick House

e
Block E F & G Elevations
01

o
Planning Amendment
Praed uter o
1077 Jan 2021
Dewan 3y Cached by
MC CF
cema P
1: 100@A1 8

rwniog M.
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0524



FFL M n
W E ey

FFL M6

Blocks E, F and G — =3
South Elevations

FRLEITEn PR30
EFige W AT —
FRLMES n

| Efrm wpr

a4

BLOCKE BLOCK F A aa e e e e

. T T
Block E F & G South Elevation
1:100
g urmms 131
E bl viar g ot
N
Blocks E, F and G — South Elevation (b) I
@ Block E F & G South Elevation
1:100
Crue
Watkin Jones
Projed
1 5 Fredenck House
—— , | : ! 1ib 11a -
Muteida ey 7 T B r 7 _ I I 1 .
T ~_] -5 - -4 EzlockEF&GElemuls
Lyt B 17 7 s
%‘ E mt?:}--—mhhw LL |:| M — ul [ 1@ Planning Amendment
ik Frpvad it
PN CITY OF . ettt st st PP N 4 29 0 7 & o Jan 2031
[} Mot pmsucnt wall capping wit FFG A B c D E F
1 o] Flad bk verical e promcting Y et Drwan 2y Crchd by
Yo R K et s gt | e cF
€1 Bl bk wartead becer propeing T duied |
T e el ey it O s i 13 L 15 18
1 e pun v b i e s S P | zan e
12 Wemhustzcur! Sk cacicin with herizoetl jints jorsed) e - = - = - | | 1 1:100@A1 B
15 D e muriris Bared vk clsessee! gin. ot PP frih |
" Vit stereirg smam roxd fatah

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Cemmittee Meeting - 5th August 2021 = 11 T Tesxoonnoms




Block G — West and East
Elevations

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

FRLMAR
S

FRLETSm
W ORe

FRL1LES
AR

Block G West Elevation
1:100

Block G East Elevation

1:100

£ Light v vt i ot T sl

) B i rtcal b ciecting 1 el

M el by i P52 st poritied

M g w6 doces b cyce srms ) Symeckel Par
st brton chekdey W foteld ot frsmd

Dode pleca suarivis birest whdows, cbacaed ghss, Wi FFC e
Mot oo s e B

City of York Council Plahning Cg)mmitte'é Meeting - 5th Aug'usst 2021 122

12b

12

Ch
Watkin Jones
Praea

Fredenick House

=
Block G Elevations

e
Planning Amendment
Prejec rubar ue
1077 Jan 2021
ety Couchadty
MC CF
Zeae E—
1: 100@A1 B

Trwsing W
1077-TGA-XX-XX-DR-A-0527



Landscape Layout

ek o b S
] P S, 35 g . b i wncn

[
sl e el e e

m ‘ =

w
Ermorgate er credar wproves. Sown 5 pee 1

Tk Sat
Dewron Cute by Bakey Srechicane o v
werzved. Dougin b

okl Teawa Tave
[ comess o Ok st e rabe by
Canen 3wt sepemved

] S gt

(1] 3een Arter Srevel b Bosedor w s o

] svreved T prve persebie sestuee foe e,

Tee Wh g 1 1+ 0 s b e

e

ATy wide sen o orcer woued Surg:

tor e #d e, S0eee et

ST rearvnene e sl e Uk eAdre
vy

1 sewewn n
ot Concreis ks wi) v cptav
Cormeeraton tarb s Crea oy Martab er
srda spmved. Wi in

Towtn Kwrs i by Tokwancon o Sk
hraved. T Macks dmep it ) \raing S

e Wb Wt
ettt

prey
et i coatd canet g 45 guie
YT —

2
ey = . SRURITATA
f Lt RERERE LR
e s | G - oo aRiton
e 5 - RERRIT
SO

I
§
f
i
5
i
|
i
i

‘ 3 e TR Bl 12825
E-—-mu.n—u . - ] B ! ’ ‘ ol

,...,...‘,.,-.
RRSEBATaRE |

P
prerTewpl

Py —
e Watkin Jones 1
ez
|:I or Frederick House, York
Ceactpeice

@ e Chaghg Pt Landscape Layout

;;.Approval
CITY OF _——— sc O Cuded O

on
1:250 EG cT 18.11.20
Jobnumter  Drawing mrmber Reviicn
3473 101 L

“oaoeop e

YORK

COUNCIL ; e TR O P ITT COTTIT Hee MEeT g ST AT St 2021 g8 Yindene




Photograph — Block B

Sy CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Va,

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th August 2021

14

gy abed



Photograph — Block C

4—"15‘% CITY OF

YORK ¢

COUNCIL

i

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th August 2021

15

61 abed



Photograph — Block D

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th August 2021




Photograph — Block E

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th August 2021

A
N .
X
‘m
X

\ E

——

17

TG obed



Photograph — Block F

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th August 2021

18

2S abed



Photograph — Block G

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th August 2021




Photograph — View
from Block F towards
Guard House

G abed

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th August 2021

0



Photograph — View from
Guard House towards Block G

Sy CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Y,

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th August 2021

21

GG abed



Photograph —
Brickwork 1 and
Brickwork 2

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th August 2021




Photograph — View
from Entrance

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Fulford Road
Police Station

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th August 2021

23

/S abed



Photograph — View from Entrance (2)

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th August 2021

24

gG abed



Photograph — View
from Fulford Road

\
\
\

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

i

F

k

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th August 2021

25

6SG abed



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	 
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4a Frederick House, Fulford Road, York YO10 4EG [21/00116/FUL]
	Frederick House Site Plan
	Frederick House presentation


